75029-1 75029-1

#### IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

FILED 7-12-16

#### DIVISION ONE

Court of Appeals
Division I
State of Washington

#### JESSICA SIMPSON,

Appellant/Plaintiff,

v.

LINDA GIPSON and JOHN DOE GIPSON, husband and wife, and the marital community composed, thereof,

Respondent/Defendant.

### ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON FOR ISLAND COUNTY

The Honorable Vickie Churchill

#### **BRIEF OF APPELLANT**

Victor Ro WSBA # 38984 Attorney for Appellant Simpson **THE RO FIRM, P.S.C.** 5400 Carillon Point Bldg. 5000, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor Kirkland, WA 98033 Tel: (206) 319-7072 Fax:(206) 319-4470

Email: litigation@rofirm.com

#### **Issues Related to Assignments of Error**

Appellant previously appeared pro se in this action, and, four calendar days before Respondent's motion for summary judgment was to be heard, hired counsel. Without time to prepare for the summary judgment hearing, Appellant's counsel orally requested a continuance, which the Court denied. The Court then granted Respondent's motion for summary judgment and dismissed Appellant's claims. Did the Court abuse its discretion in refusing to allow Appellant's counsel, who was just hired, time to prepare her case before ruling on a dispositive motion?

#### **B. STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

#### 1. Procedural Facts

Appellant Jessica Simpson was a patient at Whidbey General Hospital where she was assaulted/choked by the Respondent nurse, Linda Gipson. Respondent Gipson was probed in a criminal trial and received a not-guilty verdict. The Washington State Attorney General's Office is

appealing the decision and that case, therefore, has not reached a conclusion.

On or about September 26, 2014, the Appellant filed a civil suit against Whidbey General Hospital. *See* Exh. P1 (Plaint. Orig. Compl. Filed 9/26/14, Case No. 14-2-00622-0; *See also* CP 13. Thereafter, Appellant filed an Amended Complaint on November 24, 2014. *See* Exh. P2.

In the first lawsuit, where Appellant had different counsel, for unknown strategic reasons she did not name Linda Gipson as a defendant. Instead, the civil suit was filed only against the hospital. Without a trial, that lawsuit was dismissed. *See* Exh. P3 ("Order"; Case No. 14-2-00622-0).

More recently, on or about January 7, 2016, Ms. Simpson filed a new Complaint against Linda Gipson, the Respondent here. Her difficult circumstances, financially, emotionally, and developmentally, made it very difficult for her to hire private counsel and so she filed the complaint *pro* se. See CP 11.

Ms. Simpson's attorney was retained by Ms. Simpson, and filed a Notice of Appearance, on February 18, 2016. *See* CP 36-38. Then, on February 22, 2016, Ms. Simpson's counsel appeared for Ms. Gipson's summary judgment motion. This gave Ms. Simpson's attorney very little time to prepare even a Notice of Appearance and a Motion for Continuance,

nonetheless to oppose Ms. Gipson's dispositive motion.

Thus, on February 22, 2016, the Island County Superior Court denied Ms. Simpson's motion to continue and granted Ms. Gipson's motion to dismiss Ms. Simpson's claims with prejudice, curtailing and shutting out her ability to hire counsel to advocate properly on her behalf. *See* Exh. P5 (Summ. J. Hr'g Tr. 5, Feb. 22, 2016). The Court made its ruling before Ms. Simpson's counsel had the opportunity to submit substantive written briefing or conduct discovery.

#### C. ARGUMENT

#### 1. The Summary Judgment Order is Appealable

The trial court abused its discretion when it denied Appellant's request for a continuance and granted Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment without allowing Appellant's counsel time to investigate and prepare her case. RAP 2.2(a)(1) allows a party to appeal from a "final judgment entered in any action or proceeding..." The Order granting Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment and denying Appellant's request for a continuance constitutes a final judgment that ended the action. Consequently, the case is properly before this Court.

Alternatively, RAP 2.2(a)(3) provides that "a party may appeal from...any written decision affecting a substantial right in a civil case that in effect determines the action and prevents a final judgment or discontinues

the action." The trial court's Order granting Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment dismissed Appellant's case in its entirety, thus granting this Court the power to hear the appeal.

Although a discretionary decision, Appellant also appeals the trial court's denial of Appellant's request for a continuance. This portion of the Order falls within the scope of RAP 2.4(b), which allows review of orders not originally designated in the notice of the decision if they prejudicially affect the decision designated in the notice. Because it prevented Appellant from preparing a defense to Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment, the denial of the continuance prejudicially affected the decision to grant Respondent's motion. As a result, the denial of the continuance is properly before this Court.

## 2. The Trial Court's Summary Judgment Order Should be Overturned Because it Deprived Appellant of Her Due Process Rights

The trial court's Order should be overturned because Appellant Simpson did not get the opportunity the be heard in a meaningful manner, in violation of her due process rights. "The fundamental requirement of due process is the opportunity to be heard 'at a meaningful time and in a meaningful manner." *Mathews v. Eldridge*, 424 U.S. 319, 333, 96 S.Ct. 893, 47 L.Ed.2d 18 (1976) (quoting *Armstrong v. Manzo*, 380 U.S. 545, 552, 85 S.Ct. 1187, 14 L.Ed.2d 62 (1965)). Denial of the right to due process

is an abuse of discretion. *See, e.g., State v. Russell*, 125 Wn.2d 24, 75, 882 P.2d 747 (1994).

A trial court abuses its discretion if it makes a ruling without a tenable basis. *Butler v. Joy*, 116 Wn. App. 291, 300, 65 P.3d 671 (2003). As stated, Appellant's attorney was just retained days before the summary judgment motion hearing. The Court nonetheless denied the continuance, curtailing Appellant's right to counsel and its ability to effectively oppose Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment. See *Coggle v. Snow*, 56 Wn. App. 499, 784 P.2d 554 (1990). *See also* <u>U.S. Const. amend V; U.S. Const.</u> amend. VI; U.S. Const. amend XIV.

In *Coggle*, the plaintiff's new attorney filed an appearance one week after a summary judgment motion was filed. The Court of Appeals deemed the denial of the continuance as unfair and punishing to the client, and thus an abuse of discretion. *Coggle*, 56 Wn. App. at 508.

In this case, a continuance would have given Appellant the opportunity to conduct discovery. However, such efforts were snuffed out and foreclosed. Furthermore, insufficient grounds were articulated concerning the denial of Plaintiff's motion for continuance. *See* Exh. P5 (Summ. J. Hr'g Tr. 9:13, Feb. 22, 2016). *See also State v. Downing*, 151 Wn.2d 265, 273, 87 P.3d 1169 (2004). "A trial court abuses its discretion when its decision or order is manifestly unreasonable or its discretion is

based on untenable grounds or untenable reasons." State v. Weaver, 140 Wn. App. 349, 166 P.3d 761, 765 (2007), cited in id.

In its opposition to Appellant's request, Respondent referred to CR 56(f) concerning the "efforts" plaintiff needed to show." *See* Exh. P5 (Summ. J. Hr'g Tr. 6:2-4, Feb. 22, 2016). Here, the case of *Butler v. Joy*, 116 Wn.App. 291, 65 P.3d 671 (2003) is helpful. In *Butler*, a new attorney was retained one day before the hearing. No written affidavits were prepared, only an oral motion for continuance. There was no evidence as to what the attorney had argued in the trial court, whether or not he needed more time for discovery, or what further evidence he intended to produce. Nevertheless, the higher court held that the trial court abused its discretion. *Butler*, 116 Wn.App. at 300.

The facts here are similar to *Butler*. A new attorney was retained days before a dispositive summary judgment motion. In a world where lawyers, law firms, judges, and clerks constantly endeavor to investigate each and every case, the time and effort required for Appellant's attorney to draft a motion and file it with the court is sufficient reason to warrant a continuance. In *Butler*, the new attorney merely made a last minute oral motion for continuance and the Court of Appeals ruled that the trial court's denial of that motion was an abuse of discretion. *Id.* at 300. In our case,

the Appellant's attorney did more than just appear and make an oral motion, he drafted and filed a motion for continuance.

It would be unreasonable for any court or opposing counsel to strong-arm a recently appearing lawyer into responding literally days before a summary judgment motion, despite Respondent's contention that "the motion is not that long. You could read it on the ferry coming over here." Exh. P5 (Summ. J. Hr'g Tr. 7:2-3, Feb. 22, 2016) (emphasis added). No summary judgment motion should ever be prepared, written, and filed on a short ferry ride.

This refusal to allow Appellant's counsel sufficient time to investigate and prepare a case deprived Appellant of her fundamental rights. The United States Constitution gives all persons the right to due process. *U.S. Const. amend V; U.S. Const. amend VI; U.S. Const. amend XIV.* In the trial court, the Appellant asserted her fundamental Sixth Amendment and Fifth Amendment Rights, part of which is to hire counsel of one's own choosing. *See* Exh. P5 (Summ. J. Hr'g Tr. 9:8-9, Feb. 22, 2016).

In addition, Appellant had difficulties hiring a lawyer. Respondent Counsel's position that Appellant's counsel read and respond to the motion on a ferry ride is unreasonable. To illustrate, Appellant's Notice of Appearance was filed on February 18, 2016. The hearing was just four days later.

CR 56(c) states:

The adverse party may file and serve opposing affidavits, memoranda of law or other documentation not later than 11 calendar days before the hearing... The moving party may file and serve any rebuttal documents not later than 5 calendar days prior to the hearing.

The circumstances at bar would make compliance with these rules impossible. CR 56 also demonstrates the court system's dedication to allowing counsel a reasonable amount of time to prepare his or her case. Appellant's counsel had less time to prepare her opposition in its entirety than CR 56 provides for the moving party's reply.

In addition, Ms. Simpson is entitled to effective counsel under the Sixth Amendment to the US Constitution and Washington Constitution, art. 1, § 22 (amend. 10). *U.S. Const. amend. VI.* Her lawyer's inability to consider alternate defenses to opposing counsel's summary judgment motion prevented Appellant from effectively litigating her case, at a minimum preventing an adequate response to the summary judgment motion. Appellant effectively had deficient representation, disabling her attorney from conducting a reasonable investigation or strategically advocating on her behalf. *See In Re Personal Restraint of Davis*, 152 Wn.2d 647, 721, 101 P.3d 1 (2004) (citations omitted).

Depriving Ms. Simpson of a continuance therefore denied her the

fundamental rights to hire an attorney, access the justice system, and litigate her case.

#### 3. Granting Respondent's Motion was Manifest Error

Generally, courts aspire to adjudicate matters and avoid "manifest injustice." *See Generally* CR 16; CR 26. In addition, all parties in a lawsuit should be able to apply the laws and rules of the courts in order to seek and obtain justice for their cause. This is a bedrock principle of our judicial system and it would be in the interest of justice to permit such Appellant's litigation efforts by continuing the dispositive hearing.

Allowing continuances for "good cause" is a trademark of the courts. *See State v. Flinn*, 154 Wn.2d 193, 110 P.3d 748 (2005). Continuances allow parties' attorneys to perform discovery, file amended complaints, request changes in trial dates or hearings, and negotiate with opposing counsel regarding important matters of the case. *See also* CR 15; CR 40. Ms. Simpson she has been denied such avenues of litigation in the lower court. The procedural history of this case, and what the court or opposing counsel believe about the merits of Appellant's underlying case, are irrelevant to the continuance.

Hence, the continuance was an important factor in Appellant's case, and the motion before the trial court should have been granted. After fair and full efforts were made to investigate and brief Respondent's Motion for

Summary Judgment, the court could have adjudicated the merits of the motion on a different day. Experts and affidavits from experts could have been secured. Medical records could have been obtained. Depositions could have been had. Interrogatories and other litigation efforts could have been performed. Still, worthy and legitimate requests for continuances from both the Plaintiff and the Defendant could have been argued, stipulated and agreed-upon, or adjudicated.

More importantly, in reference to Defendant's res judicata issue for summary judgment, the Plaintiff could have responded to and successfully opposed the actual privity of Ms. Gipson to Whidbey General Hospital, inter alia. Respondent argues that because the previous case against Whidbey General Hospital, where Appellant was choked, was dismissed, that res judicata prevents Appellant from pursing Respondent, Ms. Gipson. But even if the court were to find that Ms. Gipson was an employee of Whidbey General Hospital, it does not follow that she was necessarily acting within the scope of her employment or agency when she chocked Appellant. She may have stepped outside the scope of her employment or agency and acted for herself in a personal "frolic." See, e.g., State v. O'Neill, 103 Wn.2d 853, 859, 700 P.2d 711 (1985). Regardless of whether the Court agrees with this analysis, Appellant's counsel did not have the time to

uncover evidence pertinent to the issue or to compose a brief. Instead, such

litigation efforts have been foreclosed, and this is manifest error.

Granting a continuance for newly retained attorneys is an age-old

custom with the courts as well as rules and laws deeply established within

numerous cases in Washington and throughout the country. The only

potential prejudice here is borne by Appellant in being unable to adequately

prepare for a dispositive motion; no prejudice would have been done to

Respondent had the hearing on the motion for summary judgment been

delayed. Time is always necessary to litigate a case, and Appellant should

have the same amount of time as opposing counsel to argue the summary

judgment motion, which must be more than a ferry ride.

D. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

The Island County Superior Court abused its discretion in granting

Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment while denying Appellant's

request for a continuance. The inability of Appellant's counsel to have

adequate time to effectively prepare for a dispositive motion deprived

Appellant of her right to counsel and prejudiced the proceedings.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 12th day of July, 2016.

Presented by:

Victor Ro, Esq. WSBA #38984

14

Michael Kittleson WSBA #49628

THE RO FIRM, P.S.C.

5400 Carillon Point Bldg. 5000, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor Kirkland, WA 98033 Tel: (206) 319-7072

Fax:(206) 319-4470

Email: litigation@rofirm.com

Attorneys for Appellant/Plaintiff

#### **APPENDIX**

P1 Complaint against Whidbey Island Public Hospital District
 P2 Amended Complaint against Whidbey Island Public Hospital District
 P3 Order Granting Whidbey Island's Motion for Summary Judgment
 P4 Linda Gipson's Motion for Summary Judgment
 P5 Transcript of Hearing for Linda Gipson's Motion for Summary Judgment, Plaintiff's Motion for Continuance, Originally Attached to Plaintiff's Motion for Reconsideration

# P1

9

10

11

12

13 14

15

16 17

18

19

20

21

22

23 24

25

26

27 28

> 29 30

### FILED-COPY

SEP 26 2014

DEBRAVAN PELT ISLAND COUNTY CLERK

### IN THE WASHINGTON STATE SUPERIOR COURT IN AND FOR ISLAND COUNTY

JESSICA SIMPSON, an individual,

Plaintiff,

Case No. 14 2 00622

WHIDBEY ISLAND PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT, a Washington State Corporation,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES

TO: The Island County Superior Court Clerk's Office

#### I. INTRODUCTION

COMES NOW, the Plaintiff Jessica Simpson, by and through her attorney Gregory M.

Skidmore and the law firm of Chung, Malhas & Mantel, PLLC, and brings this Complaint for Damages against the Defendant Whidboy Island Public Hospital District and alleges as follows:

#### II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2.1 This Court has jurisdiction over the parties and the subject matter of this action and the venue is proper in Island County of the State of Washington because all facts surrounding this action occurred in Island County.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES PAGE 1 OF 7



CHUNG, MALHAS & MANTEL, PLLC 600 Fins Avenus • Botte \$400 • Seciety, Webbiograp 98104 Office Phone: (200) 264-999 • Faccinite: (200) 264-999

5 6 7

8

9 10 11

13 14

15

12

16 17

19 20

18

21 22 23

> 24 25

26

27 28

29

30

#### III. PARTIES

3.1 Plaintiff Jessica Simpson (hereinafter, "Simpson") is a resident of Island County, Washington.

3.2 Defendant Whidbey Island Public Hospital District (hereinafter, "the Hospital" or "Whidbey General") is a Washington State Corporation authorized to perform business in Washington State with its principal offices located in Coupeville, Island County, Washington.

#### IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 2.1 through 3.2 and incorporates them herein as if set forth in full.

- 4.1 On or about April 30, 2014, Simpson was admitted to Whidbey General for the purposes of treating a variety of medical disorders.
- 4.2 On or about May 13, 2014, Simpson was scheduled for transfer to an inpatient facility in Mukilteo.
- 4.3 On or about 7:38 a.m., Simpson was placed in locked "four-point restraints."
- 4.4 Due to her good behavior and calm demeanor, Simpson was permitted to release one arm and one leg from the restraint.
- 4.4 At approximately 11:30 a.m., Simpson's restraints were removed by nurse Cammy Campbell (hereinafter, "Nurse Campbell") and nurse Ashley Daprato (hereinafter, "Nurse Daprato") to permit Simpson to use the restroom.
- 4.5 Simpson was place back in the four-point restraint upon her return to her room.
- 4.6 Hospital policy states that nurses are required to conduct "safety checks" each 15 minutes.



CHUNG, MALHAS & MANTEL, PLLC 600 First Avenue + Sude \$400 + Scattle, Weshington 600 Office Phogra (206) 264 6999 + Fersiolic (206) 264 6998

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES PAGE 2 OF 7

1	I
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	I
4	
5	
6	Ì
7	
8	I
9 10	l
10	I
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	,
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 31	j
27	•
28	3
29	)
31	)

4.7	Knowing that Simpson was in a four-point restraint, the Hospital staff only conducted safety checks on Simpson every one hour.
4.8	At about Noon, Nurse Campbell stepped out to get Simpson's required medication.
4.9	Angry at Simpson for an earlier incident in the Hospital, Chlef, Nursing Officer Linda S. Gipson (hereinafter, "Nurse Gipson") entered Simpson's room intent on retalisting against her.
4.10	Nurse Campbell returned to the room and Simpson was shouting to Nurse Gipson that she did not want to be given the medication Ativan.
4.11	Nurse Gipson then told her, "we have heard enough" and "you need to calm down."
4.12	Nurse Campbell began to administer the medication, with Nurse Daprato in the room.
4.13	While the medication was being administered, Nurse Gipson, unprovoked, pushed Simpson's shoulder with one hand, and grabbed Simpson's neck with the other, tightly clenching it.
4.14	She proceeded to choke Ms. Simpson for at least a few seconds. Simpson was unable to breath and felt like she was going die.
4.15	Just prior to Simpson losing consciousness, Nurse Gipson stopped choking Simpson. Simpson then gasped, "Stop it. You're hurting me," to which Nurse Gipson responded, "I will not stop until you calm down."
4.16	Nurse Gipson then placed her hand on Simpson's face and squeezed, restraining Ms. Simpson's face for approximately two minutes.
4.17	Simpson then yelled that she wanted to contact a lawyer. Nurse Gipson responded, "You are no



CHUNG, MALHAS & MANTEL, PLLC 600 Flux Avenue + Suite 4400 • Stattle, Washington 19804 Office Phone (700) 264-1999 • Feetingle: (205) 254-1999

talking to anyone. You have lost your privileges."

**30** 

- 4.18 After the incident, Nurse Gipson asked to speak to Nurse Campbell and Nurse Daprato outside of the room. She told them that her aggressive handling of Simpson was to open her airways. When Nurse Campbell responded that Ms. Simpson showed no signs of either having an obstructed airway or fighting the restraints, Nurse Gipson told Nurse Campbell, "you can sign your patients off, and you're done here."
- 4.19 Simpson suffered severe mental and emotional damages as a result of the choking incident during which she felt that her life was in jeopardy and was prohibited from being able to stop the choking.

#### V. CAUSES OF ACTION

### FIRST CLAIM (BATTERY)

Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 2.1 through 4.19 and incorporates them herein as if set forth in full.

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