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

The fact that the AG has appealed in the criminal case is wholly 

irrelevant to the analysis that the Court was required to make in the second 

civil lawsuit. 

The closest that plaintiff Simpson came to presenting any argument 

that is relevant to the second case is when she states: 

More importantly, in reference to Defendant's res judicata 
issue for summary judgment, the Plaintiff could have 
responded to and successfully opposed the actual privity of 
Ms. Gipson to Whidbey General Hospital inter alia. 

See Appellant's Brief p. 13. That argument was never made at the time of 
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the motion for continuance. It first appeared in the motion for 

reconsideration. But not only, even now, has Ms. Simpson not supplied the 

court with even one citation of authority to support this, but her own 

pleadings clearly allege that Dr. Gipson was an employee of WGH, its 

"Chief Nursing Officer." And those pleadings unequivocally alleged that 

Dr. Gipson was acting in the course and scope of her employment with 

WGH. See complaint and amended complaint in Simpson v Whidbey Island 

Public Hospital Dist., Cause No. 14-2-00622-0, paragraphs 4.9; 4.10, 4.11; 

4.13; 4.15-18; 5.1-2; 5.4-5; 5.7-8; 5.14-15; 5.18; 5.19. CP 177-182; 185-

19; Ap. 1, 2. They are quoted above. There is absolutely no question that 

Dr. Gipson, is and at all times material hereto has been, an employee of and, 

therefore, "in privity" with WGH. To suggest otherwise is baseless fantasy 

that contradicts plaintiffs own complaints and all evidence. 

The controlling law is straight forward. 

B. Standard of Review. 

Although this court hardly needs any lectures from counsel 

regarding defining what "standard of review" is, or what the standard of 

review is for reviewing a trial court's ruling on a motion for continuance, 

the RAPs seem to call for that, so, briefly, here it is. 

The concept of "Standard of Review is discussed in one of the 

Washington Practice volumes and although that volume specifically relates 
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to family law, the principles are applicable to a review of a trial court's 

decision regarding a motion for continuance: 

The attorney contemplating an appeal should 
consider the standard of review that will govern appellate 
review of the claimed errors. The standard of review will 
often affect what the appellate court will and will not 
consider on appeal, thereby affecting the chances of a 
reversal. 

As used by the appellate courts, the term standard 
of review refers to that body of law residing in the shadows 
between substance and procedure, defining a test by which 
an appellate court will decide whether a trial court 
decision is reversible error. It can be thought of as the 
burden of proof on appeal, though it should not be confused 
with the burden of proof at trial. More often than not, the 
two operate independently of each other. 

At one extreme are cases in which the claimed 
errors relate to matters within the discretion of the trial 
court. Here, reversals are relatively rare because they 
are granted only for a manifest abuse of discretion. Most, 
but not all, family law decisions fall into this category. At 
the other extreme are cases in which the issue on appeal is a 
pure question of law, which the appellate court will decide 
on a de novo basis. In between are a variety of other tests 
that may or may not be applied, depending on the nature of 
the case and the trial court decision being appealed. 

Standard of Review-Generally, 21 Wash. Prac. § 51 :26, Family and 
Community Property Law (Dec. 20 l 5)(accessed on line, hereinafter 
abbreviated as "aol" 8-10-16) (citations omitted)( emphasis added). 

There is no question that the standard of review of a trial court's 

decision on a motion for continuance, including a motion for continuance 

of a summary judgment motion, is the "abuse of discretion" standard. As 
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stated in Stranbergv. Lasz, 115 Wn.App. 396, 406, 63 P.3d 809, 814 (2003) 

(denial affd.-additional evidence would not have made a difference) 

Id. 

The denial of a continuance requested under CR 
56(f) is reviewed for an abuse of discretion. Tellevik v. Real 
Property Known as 31641 W. Rutherford St., 120 Wn.2d 68, 
90, 838 P.2d 111(1992);845 P.2d 1325. 

Stated another way, 

Decisions whether to grant a motion for a 
continuance are generally within the discretion of the trial 
court and are upheld absent an abuse of discretion State v 
Campbell, 103 Wn.2d I, 14, 691 P.2d 929 (1984), cert. 
denied, 471 US 1094, 105 S.Ct. 2169, 85 L.Ed.2d 526 
( 1985). 

In re Dentention of G. V., 124 Wn.2d 288, 295, 877 P.2d 680, 684 

(1994). 

But what constitutes an abuse of discretion? 

Abuse of discretion means that the trial court 
exercised its discretion on untenable grounds or for 
untenable reasons, or that the discretionary act was 
manifestly unreasonable. Coggle v Snow, 56 Wn.App. 499, 
507, 784 P.2d 554 (1990). 

Lindgren v Lindgren, 58 Wn.App. 588, 595, 794 P2d 526, 531 (1990). 

In re Marriage of Littlefield, 133 Wn.2d 39, 46-47, 940 P.2d 1362 

( 1997), explains: 

A court's decision is manifestly unreasonable if it is outside 
the range of acceptable choices, given the facts and the 
applicable legal standard; it is based on untenable grounds if 
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the factual findings are unsupported by the record; it is based 
on untenable reasons if it is based on an incorrect standard 
or the facts do not meet the requirements of the correct 
standard. 

Littlefield, 133 Wn.2d at 47. 

C. What a Party Moving for a Continuance of an MSJ Must Prove. 

A court may deny a continuance if: ( 1) the requesting 
party fails to offer a good reason for the delay in obtaining 
the desired evidence, (2) the requesting party fails to explain 
what evidence it would establish through additional 
discovery, or (3) the desired evidence will not raise a 
genuine issue of material fact. Id. (citing Turner v. Kohler, 
54 Wn.App. 688, 693, 775 P.2d 474 (1989)). 

Stranberg v. Lasz, 115 Wn.App. 396, 406, 63 P.3d 809, 814 (2003). 

To obtain a continuance of an adverse party's motion for summary 

judgment, the non-moving party must comply with the requirements of CR 

56(t). 

(f) When Affidavits Are Unavailable. Should it 
appear from the affidavits of a party opposing the motion 
that, for reasons stated, the party cannot present by affidavit 
facts essential to justify his opposition, the court may refuse 
the application for judgment or may order a continuance to 
permit affidavits to be obtained or depositions to be taken or 
discovery to be had or may make such other order as is just. 

CR 56(t). 

As stated in another Washington Practice volume, 

Generally. Rule 56(t) provides a possible escape 
valve for a party who is unable to produce affidavits or other 
evidence in response to a motion for summary judgment. 
The rule affords the responding party an opportunity to 
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explain why he or she is unable to present evidence in 
opposition to the motion. The court may then, in its 
discretion, deny the motion for summary judgment or order 
a continuance for the gathering of additional evidence. 

The rule requires the party seeking a continuance 
to justify the request by affidavit, demonstrating good 
cause for the delay and outlining the evidence sought to 
be discovered if the continuance is granted. In the 
absence of sufficient justification, a continuance may be 
denied and summary judgment granted. Illustrative cases 
are collected below in which the courts ultimately concluded 
that a continuance should be granted or denied. 

Most of Washington's reported cases have 
resulted in the denial of a continuance. In at least one 
case, however, the court held on the facts presented that the 
trial court abused its discretion in refusing to grant a 
continuance requested by the plaintiff. The court stated, 
"Where a party knows of the existence of a material witness 
and shows good reason why the witness' affidavit cannot be 
obtained in time for the summary judgment proceeding, the 
court has a duty to give the party a reasonable opportunity to 
complete the record before ruling on the case." 

When Supporting Materials Are Filed Late or Are Unavailable, 
Continuances, Tegland, 14A Wash. Prac., Civil Prcdr. §25:21 (2d ed.) (aol 
16-8-10) (footnotes omitted)( emphasis added). 

In other words, a party requesting a continuance of a summary 

judgment motion must show (1) the specific evidence or witness that will 

be produced with more time; (2) how that evidence will create an issue of 

material fact; and (3) a good explanation for not obtaining the information 

in a timely fashion. 

In Turner v Kho/er, 54 Wn.App. 688, 775 P.2d 474 (1989), Division 

One of the Court of Appeals affirmed the granting of a medical malpractice 
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defendant's motion for summary judgment and the denial of the patient-

plaintiffs motion to continue. The Court declared: 

The trial court may ... deny a motion for continuance 
where: (1) the requesting party does not offer a good reason 
for the delay in obtaining the desired evidence; (2) the 
requesting party does not state what evidence would be 
established through the additional discovery; or (3) the 
desired evidence will not raise a genuine issue of material 
fact. The trial court's grant or denial of a motion for 
continuance will not be disturbed absent a showing of 
manifest abuse of discretion. 

54 Wn.App. at 693, 775 P.2d at 476-77 (citations omitted). In Turner the 

plaintiffs attorney asked for more time for discovery and submitted a report 

from a doctor which was insufficient to create a material issue of fact. 

Similarly, in Colwell v Holy Family Hospital, 104 Wn.App 606, 15 

P.2d 210 (200 I). a medical defendant's motion for summary judgment was 

granted and the plaintiffs request for additional time was denied. The trial 

court concluded that the expert from whom a declaration was submitted by 

the plaintiff opposing the summary judgment motion was not qualified to 

render the necessary opinions. The Court of Appeals affirmed. 

A good example of what must be shown to obtain a continuance 

comes from the above referenced case, Coggle v Snow, 56 Wn.App. 499, 

784 P.2d 554 (1990). The Court of Appeals reversed the trial court's 

granting of the summary judgment and denial of the motion for continuance. 

The Court of Appeals found that the plaintiff had met his burden by showing 
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not only a sufficient reason for delay (that his former attorney was in the 

process of retiring and a newly associated attorney was just working on the 

case), but also that there were specific, qualified physicians who would 

express the necessary opinions, ifthe plaintiff were only given an additional 

30 to 45 days. The plaintiffs attorney's declaration was as follows: 

I. Declarant. I am Harvey Grad, attorney for 
plaintiff in this motion. Matt L. Alexander, plaintiff's 
attorney, who is in the process of retirement and has moved 
from his downtown office, has asked that I substitute as 
plaintiff's counsel. I met with Mr. Alexander on 16 August 
1988, and on that same date, called plaintiff's physician. My 
declaration is based upon that which I learned that date. 

2. Unavailability of Affidavits. Mr. Alexander has 
prepared and transmitted to Mr. Coggle, plaintiff, a reply 
declaration for his execution and return for filing, in 
response to defendant's motion. Mr. Coggle was also seen 
by a Tacoma physician, whose declaration is intended to 
rebut that of defendant and the deposition testimony of 
Doctor Mitchell upon his earlier finding that the defendant 
breached the applicable standard of care for the 
administration of medication, and that such breach was the 
proximate cause of injuries of which plaintiff has 
complained. However, it was not possible to obtain his 
affidavit within the time required by LR 56. 

3. Continuance. The current motion date should be 
continued an additional thirty (30) to forty-five ( 45) days, 
because plaintiff "cannot, for reasons stated, present by 
affidavit facts essential to justify his opposition ... ", Civil 
Rule 56(t) and the court should therefore deny defendant's 
motion and continue this case for that reason. 

56 Wn.App. at 502, 784, P.2d at 556-57. 

Moreover, on a motion for reconsideration the plaintiff actually 
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produced an adequate declaration from the physician. 

Coggle then filed a Motion for Reconsideration, 
supported by his own declaration and that of a Tacoma 
pulmonary specialist, Dr. James Billingsley. Billingsley 
stated that he examined Coggle in March, 1988, and 
reviewed Valley General Hospital's records of Coggle's 
treatment in 1983 and 1985. He stated that in 1983 "Doctor 
Mitchell noted the association between the onset of [ARDS] 
and the methadone prescribed by Doctor Snow, i.e., the 'pain 
cocktail'." Billingsley also stated: 

Doctor Snow knew, or should have known of 
the prior adverse reaction to this medication. 
He should have checked the records from the 
prior admission to establish no adverse 
consequence from medications or treatment 
previously administered. Under the 
circumstances, Doctor Snow breached the 
standard of care required of a reasonably 
prudent practitioner possessing the degree of 
skill, care and learning possessed by other 
members of the same profession in this state. 

Billingsley stated further that Coggle's injuries were a result 
of the administration of the pain cocktail which "posed a 
known risk of injury." 

Coggle's declaration submitted in support of the 
motion for reconsideration stated that he does not have any 
allergies but that, if he had been specifically asked regarding 
adverse drug reactions, he would have informed Snow and 
other hospital personnel of the effect of the pain cocktail 
administered in 1983. Coggle further stated that he was 
advised by Dr. Mitchell in 1983 that his respiratory problems 
at that time were probably due to an allergic reaction to the 
pain cocktail. He would not have requested a pain cocktail 
or accepted such medication had he been aware of its nature. 

56 Wn.App. at 503, 784, P.2d at 557. 
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As noted above, Ms. Simpson and her attorneys, the third (not 

counting the Prosecuting Attorney, who was not actually representing her, 

but certainly tried to prove wrongdoing on the part of Dr. Gipson), have not 

identified one fact, document or witness, let alone any legal authority that 

they would have been able to produce with more time, that would have 

created a genuine issue of material fact, and that would excuse their delay. 

D. Newly Appearing Attorney on Case Does Not Warrant Granting of 
Continuance, and Denial in This Case Not an Abuse of Discretion. 

Butler vJoy, 116 Wn.App. 291, 65 P.3d 671 (2003), like Coggle v 

Snow, 56 Wn.App.499, 784 P.2d 554 (1990), does not provide the help to 

Ms. Simpson that she needed for the Judge Churchill to grant Ms. 

Simpson's motion for continuance and motion for reconsideration. Nor 

does it establish an abuse of discretion by Judge Churchill. 

It must be acknowledged at the outset that the purported holding that 

plaintiff is relying on in Butler v Joy, is nothing but dicta. In the very first 

sentence of the first paragraph in the section of the opinion regarding the 

"Motion for Continuance," the Court of Appeals stated: 

Although unnecessary to our disposition of this 
appeal, we next address Ms. Butler's contention that the trial 
court erred in denying her newly retained counsel's oral 
motion for a continuance of the hearing on the January 2002 
motion for summary judgment. 

Butler v Joy, 116 Wn.App. 291, 298-299, 65 P.3d 671, 675 (2003). 
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In other words, the Court expressly stated that its pronouncements 

on the continuance issue were not necessary to its decision of the case. That 

is the definition of dicta, and, as such, it is of no precedential value. United 

States v Crawley, 83 7 F .2d 291, 292-93 (7th Cir. 1988); Export Group v Reef 

Industries, Inc., 53 F .3d 1466, 1521 (91h Cir. 1995). 

Just to make sure that readers would get the message that it was 

issuing dicta of no precedential value, the Court concluded the opinion with 

these two sentences: 

Because we cannot find a tenable ground for the trial 
court's decision, we hold that the denial of the continuance 
was an abuse of discretion. However, because we also hold 
that the trial court erred as a matter of law in granting 
summary judgment dismissal, we reverse. 

116 Wn.App. at 300, 65 P.3d at 676. 

What the court did decide that had precedential value was as 

follows. The Court of Appeals reversed the trial court's granting of the 

defendant's motion for summary judgment because the Court of Appeals 

concluded that the trial court erred as a matter of law in its analysis of 

whether the defendant had waived her defense of insufficiency of service of 

process, which was the basis for granting the summary judgment motion. It 

was only after reaching that conclusion the Court of Appeals then discussed 

the trial court's denial of the plaintiffs motion to continue the summary 

judgment hearing.

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